
 
7/8/25 

 

 1 

Town of Clifton Park Planning Board 
One Town Hall Plaza 

Clifton Park, New York  12065 

(518) 371-6054     FAX (518)371-1136 

   

 

   

PLANNING BOARD   

 

DENISE BAGRAMIAN 

 

                                                MEMBERS 

Chairwoman                                               Emad Andarawis 

                                               Eric Ophardt  

VIDA SHEEHAN                                               Heather Fariello 

Attorney                                               Mario Fantini 

                                               Keith Martin 

PAULA COOPER                                                Lisa Westrick 

Secretary                                                Matthew Luke (alt.) 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Board Minutes 

    July 8, 2025__ 

 

 

Those present at the July 8, 2025 Planning Board meeting were: 

 

Planning Board:  D. Bagramian, Chairwoman, E. Andarawis, E. Ophardt, K Martin, M. 

Fantini, L. Westrick, Matthew Luke (alternate) 

 

Those absent were:    H. Fariello 

 

Those also present were: J. Scavo, Director of Planning 

    Scott Price, M J Engineering and Land Surveying, P.C. 

P. Pelagalli, Counsel 

    P.  Cooper, Secretary 

 
 

Ms. Bagramian, Chairwoman called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  All in attendance stood for 

recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance.   

 

Ms. Bagramian stated in the absence of Ms. Fariello, Mr. Luke would be a voting member 

tonight.  

  

Minutes Approval: 



 
7/8/25 

 

 2 

Mr. Andarawis moved, seconded by Mr. Luke, approval of the minutes of the June 10, 

2025 Planning Board meeting as written.  The motion was unanimously carried.   

 

 

Public Hearing:  

#2025-032 646 Plank Road Change of Tenancy to Retail SUP 

SBL: 271.-3-18.111 

Change of Tenancy to Retail triggered by show room, 646 Plank Rd                                                                             

Zoned: TC2 - Edge Zone, Status: Preliminary 

Applicant: Plank Road Associates            Consultant: N/A 

Ms. Bagramian explained the review and approval process to those present, stating that the 

Board was required to render a determination pursuant to SEQRA (State Environmental Quality 

Review Act) prior to conducting a public hearing on this application. She explained that the 

Planning Board would assume Lead Agency status for the project and issue a negative 

declaration as a “formality” which neither granted nor implied approval of the Special Use 

Permit application. Should it be determined that additional environmental review is required, 

SEQRA discussions will be reopened and a decision rendered when deemed appropriate. 

Mr. Andarawis moved, second by Mr. Luke, to establish the Planning Board as Lead Agency for 

this application, an Unlisted action, and to issue a negative declaration pursuant to SEQRA. 

Ms. Bagramian called the public hearing to order at 7:04 p.m. The Secretary read the public 

notice as published in the Daily Gazette on June 28, 2025. 

Consultant/Applicant Presentation: 

Matthew Adams stated the project is for a floor covering store. He stated he would like to move 

his showroom to this location as it is a better location than they currently have in Schenectady. 

Mr. Adams stated they have been in business since 1971. Mr. Adams stated this is rented space 

and they are not changing the building, only making interior modifications. He stated they want 

to set up floor displays and they service mainly new construction. Mr. Adams stated no customer 

would be walking out with flooring. 

Staff and Professional Comments: 

Certain staff comments were highlighted by John Scavo, Director of Planning & Zoning, and MJ 

Engineering, the Town Designated Engineer. Copies of all remarks read into the record for the 

agenda items are included and attached to these minutes. 

Public Comments:   



 
7/8/25 

 

 3 

There being no public comment, Mr. Ophardt moved, second by Ms. Westrick, to close the 

public hearing at 7:08 p.m. The motion was unanimously carried.  

Planning Board Review: 

Ms. Westrick asked if this would change the parking. Mr. Adams stated this showroom is by 

appointment so only one or 2 customers at a time would be there. 

Mr. Andarawis stated he was going to ask about parking as well. He asked if this needs an SUP 

only because it is in the TC-2 zoning. Mr. Scavo stated this is for a SUP only and a site plan is 

still in affect from the original approvals. Mr. Scavo stated the Board can reaffirm the site plan 

with the SUP approval if the Board chooses to approve this. 

Mr. Ophardt offered Resolution No. 10 of 2025, seconded by Ms. Westrick to waive the final 

hearing for this application for the 646 Plank Road Change of Tenancy to Retail SUP approval, 

and to grant preliminary and final SUP approval condition upon satisfaction of all comments, 

provided by the Planning Department, Town Designated Engineer, and all items listed in the 

final comment letter issued by the Planning Department. 

Roll Call: 

D. Bagramian - Yes 

E. Andarawis - Yes 

E. Ophardt - Yes 

H. Fariello - Absent 

K. Martin – Yes 

M. Fantini - Yes 

L. Westrick – Yes 

M. Luke (alternate) - Yes 

 

Ayes______7____                                                 Noes: ______0___ 

 

The resolution is carried. 

 

Mr. Andarawis moved, second by Mr. Ophardt, to waive the final hearing for this application for 

the site plan review of 646 Plank Road Change of Tenancy to Retail SUP, and to grant 

preliminary and final site plan approval conditioned upon satisfaction of all comments provided 

by the Planning Department, Town Designated Engineer, and all items listed in the final 

comment letter issued by the Planning Department. 

 Conditions: all comments or conditions from original site plan approval are followed. 

  Ayes: __7___  Noes: __0____  The motion is carried. 



 
7/8/25 

 

 4 

 

 

Old Business: 

#2022-043 287 Ushers Rd Business Park Site Plan 

SBL: 259.-2-37.1 

Applicant is proposing to construct 42,000 sf commercial building, 287 Ushers Rd                                                        

Zoned: L2 - Light Industrial 2, Status: Preliminary 

Applicant: Murnane Builders         Consultant: EDP – G. Vuillaume 

Last Seen On: 04/08/2025 

Consultant/Applicant Presentation: 

Gavin Vuillaume stated he is here tonight to allow the applicant to grow its business through the 

site plan application process. He stated the application is to expand an existing building and add 

more buildings to the land. He stated the site has frontage on Ushers Road and there is parking in 

the front of the property as well as the rear. Mr. Vuillaume stated that the applicant wants to add 

12,000 square feet of storage space to the existing building and proposes three additional 

buildings at the rear of the property. The locations of these new buildings have been adjusted due 

to the cell tower on site.  He indicated that Building 3 has been relocated closer to the Northway, 

and the docks have been removed as they are deemed unnecessary for the facility.  He stated that 

trailers coming onto the property have enough room to go to the back of the property and there is 

room left for them to turn. Mr. Vuillaume stated that there is a pad site available on the property 

for display and the parking has been decreased from 170 to 124. Mr. Vuillaume indicated that 

water and sewer services are available on site and are planned for connection, while the 

designated stormwater areas are detailed on the grading plan.  He stated there were concerns 

about the Northway visibility, therefore the applicant has provided extra buffer, lighting facing to 

the east and the owner is not looking for highway visibility. Mr. Vuillaume stated the traffic 

assessment has been done and it showed 37 trips in the a.m. and 43 trips in the p.m. He stated 

they have forwarded plans to NYS DOT and now go through the permit process as they are 

looking to widen the driveway. 

Staff and Professional Comments: 

Certain staff comments were highlighted by John Scavo, Director of Planning & Zoning; and MJ 

Engineering, the Town Designated Engineer. Remarks for each agenda item are attached to these 

minutes.  

Public Comments: 

No public comment. 

Planning Board Review: 



 
7/8/25 

 

 5 

Ms. Bagramian asked if the applicant wants to widen the entrance for turning. Mr. Vuillaume 

stated it is for better movement and the increase in cars entering and exiting the site. 

Mr. Martin asked who has jurisdiction over Ushers Road. Mr. Vuillaume stated NYS DOT. Mr. 

Martin asked if the sidewalk was on property as it seemed in rough shape. Mr. Vuillaume stated 

they do not own the sidewalk but they are planning to redo it. 

Mr. Andarawis stated he appreciates the planting plan. He asked if building 4 could lose the 4 

parking spots to the east and if the building could be shifted. Mr. Vuillaume said they likely 

could and would investigate further.  

Ms. Bagramian asked how the pad site would look. Mr. Vuillaume stated they are unsure if it 

will be gravel or paved but if the Board wants screening they will. He stated the pad is 60’x40’ 

and fencing could be called out on the plan as a requirement. 

 

 

Old Business: 

#2024-043 Kinns Rd Office/Warehouse Buildings on 3 Lots Site Plan (Synergy Park) 

SBL: 265.-5-12 

Applicant proposes construction of three (3) office/warehouse buildings on 3 separate lots, Kinns 

Rd Zoned: B5 - Corporate Commerce, Status: Revised Preliminary 

Applicant: Synergy Park, LLC             Consultant: Lansing Engineering – C. Jarvis 

Last Seen On: 05/28/2025 

Consultant/Applicant Presentation: 

Paul Lubera stated this application is in Synergy Park and is for 3 commercial buildings. He 

stated that they have responded to MJE comments and they will change the species of 

landscaping buffers as requested. 

Staff and Professional Comments: 

Certain staff comments were highlighted by John Scavo, Director of Planning & Zoning, and MJ 

Engineering, the Town Designated Engineer. Copies of all remarks read into the record for the 

agenda items are included and attached to these minutes. 

Public Comments: 

No public comment. 

Planning Board Review: 



 
7/8/25 

 

 6 

Ms. Bagramian inquired about the office and warehouse space.  Mr. Lubera stated it would be 

90% warehouse and 10% office space. 

Mr. Andarawis asked if there is any potential for an easement as requested previously. Mr. 

Lubera stated the applicant has reached out but has not heard back yet. 

Mr. Ophardt asked if the path goes around the wetlands. Mr. Lubera indicated that there is a 10-

foot easement and walking path in that location, which will remain under private ownership.  

Mr. Martin asked if there is a need for an access easement for the rear of the property. Mr. 

Lubera stated this is a recreational path for employees and leads to a grassy area that is cross-

lots. 

Mr. Andarawis moved, second by Mr. Luke, to waive the final hearing for this application for the 

site plan review of Kinns Rd Office/Warehouse Buildings on 3 Lots Site Plan (Synergy Park), 

and to grant preliminary site plan approval conditioned upon satisfaction of all comments 

provided by the Planning Department, Town Designated Engineer, and all items listed in the 

final comment letter issued by the Planning Department. 

 Conditions for final approval: 

1. All comments from Mr. Reese are satisfied and signed off by Mr. Reese 

2. MJE comments are addressed and signed off by MJE 

   Ayes: __7___  Noes: ___0___  The motion is carried. 

 

New Business: 

None 

 

Discussion Items: 

Mr. Scavo stated that the Plank Road project will be coming back before the Board. He stated the 

applicant was able to do a side load garage as requested by the Board. 

Mr. Scavo announced that submittals for the next meeting are due next week. Board members 

should contact the Planning Department with any questions or comments.  

Mr. Scavo stated Town has changed their website to conform to law and they are now 

cliftonparkny.gov. he stated the site is now active and the Board can sign up for notifications 

since there is a change from Legacy to a new platform. 



 
7/8/25 

 

 7 

 

Mr. Ophardt moved, seconded by Ms. Westrick, adjournment of the meeting at 7:42 p.m.  The 

motion was unanimously carried.  

 

The next meeting of the Planning Board will be held as scheduled on August 12, 2025. 

 

 

 

       Respectfully submitted, 

 

Paula Cooper 

        

       Paula Cooper, Secretary 



 

ATTACHED: 

PROFESSIONAL STAFF, TOWN 

DESIGNATED ENGINEER & ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 


























	7-8-25 Planning Board Minutes
	comment attachment page
	7-8-25 Planning Board Agenda with Staff Commennts
	7-8-25 Planning Board Agenda
	2025-032
	2022-043
	2024-043


